Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong, which
include all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), such term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“"HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is historical cost
modified by the marking to market of certain
investments in securities as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies and methods
of computation used in the preparation of the
financial statements for the year ended 28
February 2006 are consistent with those
adopted in the financial statements for the
year ended 28 February 2005, except for the
adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs as

explained in (c) below.
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1. Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
During the current year, the Group has

adopted new and revised HKFRSs which are

effective for accounting periods commencing

on or after 1 January 2005. The new and revised

HKFRSs which are relevant to the Group'’s

operations are:—

HKAS 1

HKAS 2
HKAS 7
HKAS 8

HKAS 10
HKAS 12
HKAS 14
HKAS 16
HKAS 17
HKAS 18
HKAS 19
HKAS 21

HKAS 23

HKAS 24

HKAS 26

HKAS 27

HKAS 32

HKAS 33

HKAS 36

HKAS 37

HKAS 39

HKAS 40

HKFRS 2
HKFRS 3

Notes to the Financial
Statements

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Inventories

Cash Flow Statements
Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Income Taxes

Segment Reporting

Property, Plant and Equipment
Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures
Accounting and Reporting by
Retirement Benefit Plans
Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Financial Instruments: Disclosure
and Presentation

Earnings Per Share

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets

Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement

Investment Property

Share-based Payment

Business Combinations

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong

(i)

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14, 16,
18, 19, 23, 26, 32, 33, 37, 39 and 40 has had no
material impact on the accounting policies of
the Group and the Company and the methods
of computation in the Group’s and the

Company'’s financial statements.

The impact of the adoption of the other
HKFRSs on the financial statements is as

follows:—

Share option scheme (HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”)

In prior years, no amounts were recognised
when option holders were granted share
options over shares in the Company. If the
option holders chose to exercise the options,
the nominal amount of share capital and share
premium were credited only to the extent of

the option’s exercise price receivable.

With effect from 1 March 2005, in order to
comply with HKFRS 2, the Group recognises the
fair value of such share options as an expense
in the income statement, or as an asset, if the
cost qualifies for recognition as an asset under
the Group’s accounting policies. A
corresponding increase is recognised in a share-
based compensation reserve within equity.

1.

FESBEK @

(c)

BRI RSB EBNBHREE
Al (4)
HmwEBgsr2ERI%E2-7-810
12-14-16°18 192326 32"
33+ 37 * 3I9RAFHAEBMRANT ZE
ABERUARAEBR AN E S BRKZ
STEAAGEBREAEATE.

RAE M E B IR EENH T HEHE
2/ BT

(i)

BIRE B (BB KRS ERE
255 [BURHETT])

RBEFE RBRESFAAER
ARBARQ B RN 2B RER I
ERREMESR-NBRESFEA
RETERBRE EUBREZE
AT EER ARANEER R0

AHEBRBUBREERE 2R
RE H2005F38 188 AEE
ElhExPEEEBREZAARE
BRABS AMEBEREAFESE
ERBAEEZ ST ERERAE
B BIZWEERE  URESHRDE
ERA B ARG o

Notes to the Financial
Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Page 88/89 H



1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

(i)

Share option scheme (HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”) (Continued)

Where the option holders are required to
meet vesting conditions before they
become entitled to the options, the Group
recognises the fair value of the options
granted over the vesting period.
Otherwise, the Group recognises the fair
value in the period in which the options
are granted.

If an option holder chooses to exercise
options, the related share-based
compensation reserve is transferred to
share capital and share premium, together
with the exercise price. If the options lapse
unexercised the related share-based
compensation reserve is transferred
directly to retained earnings.

The new accounting policy has been
applied retrospectively with comparatives
restated in accordance with HKFRS 2,
except that the Group has taken
advantage of the transitional provisions
set out in paragraph 53 of HKFRS 2 under
which the new recognition and
measurement policies have not been
applied to the following grants of
options:—

(a) all options granted to option holders
on or before 7 November 2002; and

(b) all options granted to option holders
after 7 November 2002 but which had
vested before 1 March 2005.

Notes to the Financial

Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Share option scheme (HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”) (Continued)

As all the Group’s options were granted
to option holders either before 7
November 2002 or after 1 March 2005, the
adoption of HKFRS 2 has no impact on the
Group’s net assets and results for the prior

years.

The amount charged to the income
statement as a result of the change of
policy increased cost of sales, selling
expenses and administrative expenses for
the year ended 28 February 2006 by
HK$185,000, HK$1,829,000 and
HK$318,000 respectively (year ended 28
February 2005: Nil), with the
corresponding amounts credited to the

share-based compensation reserve.

Details of the share option scheme are set

out in note 26.

Leasehold land and buildings held for own
use (HKAS 17 “Leases”)

In prior years, leasehold land and buildings
held for own use were stated at revalued
amounts less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.
Movements of revaluation surpluses or
deficits were normally taken to the land

and buildings revaluation reserve.

1. FEETEE®

() HAHITREBIBTBUBEHREE
LINE )

(i)

(ii)

BRI B (B BRI RS ERE
255 [LURGHEST]) ()

A ZS S5 B B R B IR AE 19770 2002
F11H7H 2A15k20055F3 8182
BRTBRESEA BRHEE
B R 5 2 R BB 255 I MR AN SR [
BREFEZEEFERFEERET
OEZ- &

HEHBEREH M ARFEZRZE
BEHEHZE2006F2H28AILFE
ZHERA HEBRARTHER
2RI INER185,0007T B
1,829,0007T & 7&#318,0007T (&
Z200552H28A L EE: £) » I
ERROBERERTAEES
8o

HRBRE B BENME
26°

ERHEL M RET (BEEE
RIZE1735[#HE])

EBREFE GREE I HRIET
DBUEMEERRATITERZ5R
EEEAR-EMBSRIEE 22
BRI AL REFEGHEE

Notes to the Financial
Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Page 90/91 H



1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

(ii)

Leasehold land and buildings held for own
use (HKAS 17 “Leases”) (Continued)

With the adoption of HKAS 17 as from 1
March 2005, the leasehold interest in the
land held for own use is accounted for as
being held under an operating lease
where the fair value of the interest in any
buildings situated on the leasehold land
could be separately identified from the
fair value of the leasehold interest in the
land at the time the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee, or at the date of
construction of those buildings, if later.
In case the two elements cannot be
allocated reliably, the entire lease is
classified as a finance lease and carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.

As from 1 March 2005, the buildings are
also stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation, rather than at fair value, to
be consistent with the new policy required
to be adopted for the land element which
should be classified as operating lease and

cannot be revalued.

Notes to the Financial

Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. Significant accounting policies 1. FESTHER @

(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong () EMFIIRBBIEBMKEREE
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued) Al @)
(ii) Leasehold land and buildings held for own (i) EFHEELHRET (EEETE
use (HKAS 17 “Leases”) (Continued) BIZ175 [HHE]) (48)
The new accounting policies have been FETTEREREBHER YRR
adopted retrospectively with the opening iR T REF T REFERM
balances of accumulated losses, land and RE EEHEEE EERIEEE
buildings, land and buildings revaluation Z A EA R LB E R AT

reserve, deferred tax assets, deferred tax
liabilities and the comparative

information adjusted as follows:—

As at 1 March

3A1H
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Effect of new policy FHRzEE
(increase/(decrease)) (#hn, CEd) )
Accumulated losses 25tE5iE (31,906) (34,537)
Land and buildings T REFEGHE
revaluation reserve (24,997) (21,412)
Land and buildings T RAEF 6,143 13,014
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIESE (766) (111)
In respect of the year ended 28 February MEE2006F2H28H EFEM
2006, it is not practicable to estimate the B AQREEGHEABERE
extent to which the loss for the year, or ESTAESE ZWASRZRESR
the income or expenses taken directly to FER WA FENRABEBRZ
equity, are higher or lower than they a0

would have been had the previous policy

still been applied in the current year.

Notes to the Financial
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1. Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

(iii) Amortisation of positive and negative
goodwill (HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” and HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”)

In prior periods:—

Notes to the Financial
Statements

positive or negative goodwill which
arose prior to 1 March 2001 was
taken directly to reserves at the time
it arose, and was not recognised in
the income statement until disposal
or impairment of the acquired

business;

positive goodwill which arose on or
after 1 March 2001 was amortised on
a straight line basis over its useful life
and was subject to impairment
testing when there were indications

of impairment; and

negative goodwill which arose on or
after 1 March 2001 was amortised
over the weighted average useful life
of the depreciable/amortisable non-
monetary assets acquired, except to
the extent it related to identified
expected future losses as at the date
of acquisition. In such cases it was
recognised in the income statement
as those expected losses were

incurred.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. Significant accounting policies 1. FESTHER @

(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong () EMFIIRBBIEBMKEREE
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued) Al @)

(iii) Amortisation of positive and negative (iii) ERTEREREZ#Y (FEUKE

goodwill (HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” and HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”) (Continued)

With effect from 1 March 2005, in
accordance with HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36,
the Group no longer amortises positive
goodwill. Such goodwill is tested annually
for impairment, including in the year of
its initial recognition, as well as when
there are indications of impairment.
Impairment losses are recognised when
the carrying amount of the cash
generating unit to which the goodwill had
been allocated exceeds its recoverable

amount.

Also with effect from 1 March 2005 and
in accordance with HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36,
if the fair value of the net assets acquired
in a business combination exceeds the
consideration paid (i.e. an amount arises
which would have been known as
negative goodwill under the previous
accounting policy), the excess is
recognised immediately in the income
statement as it arises.

In accordance with the transitional
arrangements under HKFRS 3, goodwill
which had previously been taken directly
to reserves (i.e. goodwill which arose
before 1 March 2001) will not be
recognised in the income statement on
disposal or impairment of the acquired
business, or under any other

circumstances.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

(iii) Amortisation of positive and negative

(iv)

goodwill (HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” and HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”) (Continued)

The change in policy relating to negative
goodwill had no effect on these financial
statements as there was no negative
goodwill deferred as at 28 February 2005.

Retranslation of goodwiill relating to a net
investment in a foreign operation (HKAS
21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates”)

In prior years, goodwill was recognised
directly in equity or carried at cost less
amortisation and impairment.

With effect from 1 March 2005, in order
to comply with HKAS 21, any goodwill
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation is treated as an asset of the
foreign operation. Thus it is expressed in
the functional currency of that foreign
operation and is retranslated at the
closing rate at each balance sheet date.
Any resulting exchange difference is taken
directly to the exchange reserves, together
with any other differences arising from
the re-translation of the net assets of the
foreign operation.

In accordance with the transitional
provisions in HKAS 21, this new policy has
not been adopted retrospectively and will
only be applied to acquisitions occurring
on or after 1 March 2005. As the Group
has not acquired any new foreign
operations since that date, the change in
policy has had no impact on these financial
statements.

Notes to the Financial

Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. Significant accounting policies 1. FESTHER @

(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong () EMFIIRBBIEBMKEREE
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued) Al @)

(v) Minority interests (HKAS 1 “Presentation (v) 2DERFEZ (BEBEERFE

of Financial Statements” and HKAS 27
“Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements”)

In prior years, minority interests at the
balance sheet date were presented in the
consolidated balance sheet separately
from liabilities and as deduction from net
assets. Minority interests in the results of
the Group for the year were also
separately presented in the income
statement as a deduction before arriving
at the profit attributable to shareholders.

With effect from 1 March 2005, in order
to comply with HKAS 1 and HKAS 27,
minority interests at the balance sheet
date are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately
from the equity attributable to the equity
holders of the Company, and minority
interests in the results of the Group for
the year are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an
allocation of the total profit or loss for the
year between the minority interests and
the equity holders of the Company.

The presentation of minority interests in
the consolidated balance sheet, income
statement and statement of changes in
equity for the previous year has been

restated accordingly.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Judgement and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future

periods.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries made up to 28
February 2006. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies
used into line with those used by other

members of the Group.

Notes to the Financial

Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. Significant accounting policies 1. FESTHER @
(Continued)

(e) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (e) HEEE (&)

A subsidiary, in accordance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, is a company in
which the Group, directly or indirectly, holds
more than half of the issued share capital or
controls more than half the voting power or
controls the composition of the board of
directors. Subsidiaries are considered to be
controlled if the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial
and operating policies, so as to obtain benefits

from their activities.

The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions, and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
in full on consolidation. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains,
but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year
has been accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. This method involves
allocating the cost of the business
combinations to fair values of the assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.
The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the

acquisition.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Any excess of the cost of the acquisition over
the fair values of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recognised as goodwill. Goodwill
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units and is tested annually for impairment.
Any excess of the Group's interest in fair values
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a
business combination is recognised

immediately in the income statement.

Minority interests at the balance sheet date,
being the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to equity interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet
and statement of changes in equity within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company.
Minority interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the total
profit or loss for the year between minority
interests and the equity shareholders of the

Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed
the minority’s interest in the equity of a
subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses
applicable to the minority, are charged against
the Group's interest except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation to, and
is able to, make good the losses. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the
Group's interest is allocated all such profits
until the minority’s share of losses previously

absorbed by the Group has been recovered.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(f)

Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating

unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the greater of net
selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and

the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately, unless
the relevant asset is land or buildings other
than investment property carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is

treated as a revaluation decrease.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost, less provisions for depreciation and any
impairment losses. Details are set out in
note 11. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
the item has been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs,
is normally charged to the income statement
in the year in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the item, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of the item. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is sold, its cost and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the financial
statements and any gain or loss resulting from
the disposal, being the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, is included in the income
statement.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line

method, based on the estimated economic

useful lives of the individual assets, as follows:—

Leasehold land and 55 years from the

buildings date of purchase

Furniture, fixtures

and equipment 1to 10 years

Plant and machinery 3 to 7 years

Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years

Leased assets

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are

classified as operating leases.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases
Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
assets, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments of such
assets, are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as obligations under finance
leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost or valuation of
assets over the term of the relevant leases
or, where it is likely the Group or the
Company will obtain ownership of the
assets, the life of the assets, as set out in
note 1(g) above. Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 1(f)
above. Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to income
statement over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent
rentals, if any, are charged to income
statement in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by
the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received
are recognised in income statement as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals, if
any, are charged to income statement in
the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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1.

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

()

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less any
identified impairment losses. Results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Investments in securities

From 1 March 2005 onwards, the Group
classifies and measures its debt and equity
securities in accordance with HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. Under HKAS 39, financial
assets are classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss”, “available-for-
sale financial assets”, “loans and receivables”,
or “held-to-maturity financial assets”.
“Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss” that are not part of a hedging
relationship and “available-for-sale financial
assets” are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair values recognised in profit or loss and
equity respectively. “Loans and receivables”
and “held-to-maturity financial assets” are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

The fair value of investments that are actively
traded in organised financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business on the balance
sheet date. For investments where there is no
active market, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to current market value of another
instrument, which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models. When the fair value of unlisted
equity securities cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(k)

)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the

period in which the reversal occurs.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses are

recognised in the income statement.
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1. Significant accounting policies 1. FESTHER @
(Continued)
(I) Foreign currency translation (Continued) () SNEBRE &)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the

fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign

operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences recognised in equity which relate
to that foreign operation is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(m) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at cost less allowance for bad and doubtful
debts.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case

they are stated at cost.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the
Company or Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the

obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the
present value at the balance sheet date of the
future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs

in the income statement.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(p) Employee benefits

0}

(ii)

(iii)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, leave passage and the cost to the
Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident
Funds as required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and contributions to the
retirement schemes operated by the
relevant authorities for employees of the
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and Malaysia are
recognised as an expense in the income
statement as incurred, except to the
extent that they are included in the cost
of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of
lump sum long service amounts payable
on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of
future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods. The obligation
is calculated using the projected unit
credit method by a qualified actuary,
discounted to its present value, and the
fair value of any related plan assets is
deducted. The discount rate is the yield
at balance sheet date on Exchange Fund
Notes that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s
obligations.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(q) Income tax

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income statement
except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised directly in equity, in

which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.
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1. Significant accounting policies 1. FESTHER @
(Continued)
(q) Income tax (Continued) (q) FiiE® (&)
(iii) (Continued) (i) (&)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(q) Income tax (Continued)
(iii) (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
negative goodwill treated as deferred
income, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not

part of a business combination).

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax
asset is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profit will be available.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(q) Income tax (Continued)

(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities
if, and only if, the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:—

e in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or

. in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:-
o the same taxable entity; or

o different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(r) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognised in the income

statement as follows:—

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts and returns.

Commission and consultancy service
income

Commission and consultancy service
income are recognised when the related

services are rendered.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the income
statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rental
are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are

earned.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iv) Dividends
e Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

e Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

(v) Interest income
Interest income from bank deposits is
accrued on a time-apportioned basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and
at the rate applicable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred
except where they relate to the financing of
major capital projects where they are
capitalised up to the date that the assets are
brought into a working condition for their
intended use.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and
short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition, less advances
from banks repayable within three months
from the date of the advance. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents.
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1. Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(u) Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group

if:—

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

the party has the ability, directly or
indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Group and the party are subject to
common control or common significant

influence;

the party is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family

of any individual referred to in (i) or (ii);

the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual

referred to in (ii) or (iii); or

the party is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of the
Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.
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1 Significant accounting policies 1. FESTHER @
(Continued)

(v) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of
the Group that is engaged either in providing
products or services (business segment), or in
providing products or services within a
particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to
risks and rewards that are different from those
of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal
financial reporting, the Group has chosen
geographical segment information as the
primary reporting format. No business
segments analysis of the Group is presented as
all the Group’s turnover and trading result are
generated from the manufacture, sale and
marketing of jewellery products and provision
of related agency services.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to that segment. For
example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and fixed assets.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities are determined before intra-group
balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process,
except to the extent that such intra-group
balances and transactions are between group
enterprises within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the year to acquire segment
assets that are expected to be used for more
than one year.
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1. Significant accounting policies 1. EESFEEER @
(Continued)
(v) Segment reporting (Continued) (v) DEEE (&)
Unallocated items mainly comprise financial ROBBEEEEEBEUBEREEEE 5
and corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, BER B CENMES L
borrowings, corporate and financing expenses.
2. Turnover 2. EX®
The principal activities of the Group are the AEENTEEKRRE HEREEKRED
manufacture, sale and marketing of jewellery A0 12 H AR BE RO (O3 AR RS
products and provision of related agency services.
Turnover represents the sales value of jewellery B EEEHEREFKRE O EEER
products sold to customers and commission income. 2R -FREEEXEETRINSEHEE
The amount of each significant category of revenue WABERINEEENT
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Sales of jewellery products REEMEE 1,323,678 1,253,603
Commission income AL ON 454 22,393
1,324,132 1,275,996
3. Other revenue 3. HftlgA
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Rental income HEWA 32 161
Interest income FIE WA 279 132
Foreign exchange gain B 5 U 208 2,755
Consultancy service income R RS AR A WA - 256
Others Hib 1,525 5,731
2,744 9,035
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taxation

Profit from ordinary activities before taxation is

arrived at after charging/(crediting):

4. Profit from ordinary activities before

4. RBAIEERBEF

BRBEIEREBBEFISME GHA)

(b)

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(a) Finance costs (a) MBEA
Interest on bank loans RITERREX
and overdraft RS 2,049 739
Interest on other loans HERHRE 4,050 4,189
Interest on amount due to ERDERR
a minority shareholder FRIEHYFI S - 62
Finance charges on obligations REHEAEN
under finance leases 5 & M 60 47
6,159 5,037
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Staff costs (b) BIMKAR
Contribution to defined REMFGER
contribution retirement plan FTEIHER 4,814 4,518
Expense recognised in respect of ERRBRES
long service payments ERH S H
(note 21(a)(ii) and (iii)) (KE3E21(a)(ii) R (iii)) (1,431) 844
Retirement costs RARFT IR A 3,383 5,362
Equity-settled share option expenses LABR A7 4 B BB R A =2 2,332 -
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥ ITERHEMER 190,876 144,742
196,591 150,104
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4. Profit from ordinary activities before 4. BRBAIEREKERN @
taxation (Continued)

(9]

Cost of inventories sold includes HK$37,829,000
(2005: HK$26,324,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation expenses, operating lease charges and
reversal of provision for inventories, which amount

Other items

Auditors’ remuneration
— current year provision
— prior year under provision
Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation
Operating leases charges
- land and buildings situated
in Hong Kong
- land and buildings situated
other than in Hong Kong
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Write back of provision for
properties held for sale
Reversal of provision for

inventories

Rentals receivable from properties

less direct outgoings of
HK$12,000 (2005: HK$48,000)

(9]

2006
HK$°000
BT T
Hga
L Gl e
—REERE 3,250
-~ IFERETRE 1,077
HEFERAK 657,896
e 24,225
BEHEERA
—BBzLHR
BEY 66,512
— BBz L
REFEY 9,830
HENE - BER
RIBEE 47
BESEYERBRE
FERERE
(2,701)
EWERSHERE
X 8 %12,0007T
(20054 : /#%48,0007T) (20)

2005
HK$'000
BT T

(restated)
(KE7)

3,218

1,114

693,496

15,378

48,662

4,476

197

(913)

(350)

(113)

is also included in the respective total amounts SR EMERER R e

disclosed separately above in note 4(b) and 4(c) for

each of these types of expenses.
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5. Taxation

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income

statement represents:—

5. BIEH

(@) HRERBERFATHAEHA:

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
(restated)
(&%)
Current tax — Provision for BB -
Hong Kong Profits Tax REBEE
Tax for the year REEBIE 815 9,683
Underprovision in respect of NEFERBTR
prior years 50,964 26,005
51,779 35,688
Current tax — overseas REABLIE — /o
Tax for the year REERIE 22,948 14,249
Overprovision in respect of LA FEBERREG
prior years (1,107) -
21,841 14,249
Deferred tax EEHRE
Origination and reversal of TREENEE
temporary differences e (3,069) (14,714)
70,551 35,223

(i) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
is calculated at 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is

similarly charged at the appropriate

current rate of taxation ruling in the

relevant countries.

)

RN SR EREAFENMGE

T BF

BA17.5% (20054 :

17.5%) BB R G E A
BIBYBLIE LA B B SE A R AT
RPEUT EFTE
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5. Taxation (Continued)
(@) (Continued)

(ii)

Since the end of the last financial year and
up to the date of these financial
statements, certain subsidiaries of the
Group received from the Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD"”) additional
assessments amounting to approximately
HK$51,000,000 relating to certain offshore
income and agents commission payments
and promoter fees essentially for all prior
years under dispute in respect of which
the IRD has been challenging the tax
treatments adopted by the subsidiaries.

The subsidiaries are in the process of
gathering relevant information to support
the tax treatments adopted. The directors
consider it prudent to establish a full
provision of HK$51,000,000 in respect of
the above which has been charged to the
consolidated income statement for the

year.
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5. Taxation (Continued) 5. BiIE @

(b) Reconciliation between taxation and (b) BEMZEAFREAENG TR Y
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: fR:

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET T

(restated)

C<=270))

Profit before taxation BRI 2R 42,433 78,418

Notional tax on profit before tax, ZBEIHBEEIES
calculated at the rates applicable  ZRIFEAKRTE

to profits in the countries BREBRNERHIE

concerned 4,810 20,495
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax AEERHEENEFD

exemption RIEZE (811) (700)
Tax effect of non-deductible A HIR S H Bl IE S

expenses 21,414 4,233
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue  BERHUWANBIEZE (10,733) (1,624)
Tax effect of prior year's tax losses RAFEEHIEE

utilised this year BIBMBIETE (1,197) (360)
Tax effect of temporary differences K ERHHFEZEHN

not recognised B g 2,328 342
Tax effect of prior year's temporary RZAFEER

difference recognised this year AEEEREENT B (1,808) (15,373)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KRR KEHHN

recognised BIAE BN BIE R 6,691 2,205
Underprovision in respect of NEFERBTR

prior years 49,857 26,005
Actual tax expense BERHELRH 70,551 35,223
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6. Directors’ remuneration 6. ESEE

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to RIEE B (ARG E16 1R EENESIHS
section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance WM
is as follows:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(restated)
(FE&E %)
Fees we 1,260 1,440
Salaries and other emoluments HekHEMmmHE 7,128 6,480
Performance related incentives R IAERE 2 B 3,784 4,114
Share-based payments LR B 1,139 -
Contributions to retirement benefits
scheme ERBRIFT B 25 36
13,336 12,070
Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees EEMEERFAXNTHHITESNERSE
of HK$1,260,000 (2005: HK$1,440,000) paid to the #£1,260,0007T (20054 : & %51,440,0007T) ©

non-executive directors during the year.
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6. Directors’ remuneration (Continued) 6. EEHE @
Contributions
Salaries Performance to retirement

and other related benefits Share-based
Fees emoluments incentives scheme payments Total
FER ERLEE RIER
ne H 5 ZRE FEMR  URGES st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT  ERTR BETT  ERTR BRI

2006
Executive directors: HTES:
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy HEE = 3,078 3,001 12 530 6,621
Peter Gerardus Van RS
Weerdenburg - 1,765 156 - 530 2,451
Leung Yit Kuen, Raymond 244 - 195 92 1 - 288
Alex Chan BRiIEE - 830 35 12 53 930
Erwin Steve Huang EEX - 1,260 500 - 26 1,786
- 7,128 3,784 25 1,139 12,076
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Hong Po Kui, Martin BE 180 - - - - 180
Chui Chi Yun, Robert * B 360 - - - - 360
Gerald Clive Dobby * Gerald Clive Dobby* 360 - - - - 360
Lui Pui Kee, Francis * B 360 - - - - 360
1,260 - - - - 1,260
1,260 7,128 3,784 25 1,139 13,336
* Independent non-executive directors. * BUFHITES
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6. Directors’ remuneration (Continued) 6. EEME @
Contributions
Salaries Performance to retirement

and other related benefits Share-based
Fees emoluments incentives scheme payments Total
Fek ERLEE RIKER
ik H 5 ZRB AR HURGES @t

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BMTr  BRTR  B®Tr  BETR BT ERTR

2005
Executive directors: BTES!
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy HEE = 2,999 3,000 12 - 6,011
Peter Gerardus Van BEE
Weerdenburg - 1,765 600 - - 2,365
Leung Yit Kuen, Raymond 24 - 1,041 214 12 - 1,267
Alex Chan BRiEE - 675 300 12 - 987
- 6,480 4,114 36 - 10,630
Non-executive directors: FHTES!
Hong Po Kui, Martin RER 360 - - - - 360
Chui Chi Yun, Robert * EH 360 - - - - 360
Gerald Clive Dobby * Gerald Clive Dobby* 360 - - - - 360
Lui Pui Kee, Francis * mIEE* 360 - - - - 360
1,440 - - - - 1,440
1,440 6,480 4,114 36 - 12,070
* Independent non-executive directors. * BUFHITES
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Individuals with highest emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,

three (2005: three) are directors whose emoluments

are disclosed in note 6. The aggregate of the

emoluments in respect of the other two (2005: two)

individuals are as follows:—

7. REMEAL

EEEHEEMEALTH =5 (2005F: =F)
HEE EEMSHBEENKEe - HEWMSB
(20055 W B) ATHIBNSRZEMT

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT T

(restated)

(&=51)

Salaries and other emoluments FeREMME 2,408 1,296

Performance related incentives BRI MRS 2 22 B 2,456 4,167
Contributions to retirement

benefits scheme RGBT B 24 24

Share-based payments LURAHEA 86 -

4,974 5,487

The emoluments of the two (2005: two) individuals

with the highest emoluments are within the

following bands:-

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

ZME (20055 WE) BReMEALHMEE

T EER:
2006
Number of
individuals
A
7B#51,000,001 75 £ 8% 1,500,0007C 1
78#53,500,001 7T £ %E%4,000,0007T 1

784,000,001 Z %% 4,500,0007T -

2005
Number of

individuals

AE

Loss attributable to shareholders

The consolidated loss attributable to shareholders
includes a loss of HK$37,831,000 (2005: profit of
HK$59,281,000) which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company.

8. BRREMLEE

BREGFREBIREE—ECI AR AT
|RMEM37,831,000T 8 (20055 178

#£59,281,0007T & X)) °
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9. (Loss)/earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per
share is based on the loss attributable to
shareholders of HK$47,977,000 (2005: profit
attributable to shareholders of HK$35,813,000
— restated) and the weighted average of
207,063,221 ordinary shares (2005: 75,063,433
ordinary shares after adjusting for the capital

reorganisation in 2005) in issue during the year.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted loss per share is not shown for the year
ended 28 February 2006 as all the potential
ordinary shares (i.e. the share options) are anti-

dilutive.

There were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares in existence during the year ended 28
February 2005.
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10. Segment reporting 10. 7 EPHRE

Segment information is presented in respect of the DHMERRREAEEN M E D FEH 2432
Group's geographical segments. Information ERBEEMENEMREMEREESEZE
relating to geographical segments based on the B D E B BEERE AR B S RUHER
location of assets is chosen because this is more RREEA-ARAEENEXAREERE
relevant to the Group in making operating and HRBEGE - HERERKRE A HNREAE
financial decisions. No business segments analysis WRIERE A BRMEEANEE 2 X£K8
of the Group is presented as all the Group’s turnover Bl DA

and trading result are generated from the
manufacture, sale and marketing of jewellery
products and provision of related agency services.

PRC (including Hong Kong) Others Inter-segment elimination Consolidated
WE (BREE) Bt AREEHUE GARE

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
E¥Tn  A¥Tn  ERTn  ARTn  BRTR EBTn BNt EBTn

(restated)
(&E5)
Revenue from external RENREFHBA
customers 1,297,568 1,249,624 26,564 26,372 - - 1324132 1,275,99
Inter-segment revenue PHEYA 10,254 11,134 - - (10,254)  (11,134) - -
Other revenue from external ~ RESREFH
customers =1ON 2,397 8,688 347 347 - - 2,744 9,035
Total am 1,310,219 1,269,446 26,911 26,719 (10,254) (11,134) 1,326,876 1,285,031
Segment results ABEE 48,144 79,252 448 876 48,592 80,128
Finance costs BRER (6,159) (5,037)
Cost of financial restructuring HHEAER - (1,142)
Loss on disposal of HENEEE
properties - (68)
Recovery of debts written hEEEEE
off in prior years FisEER - 4,537
Income tax g (70,551)  (35,223)
(Loss)/profit for the year rEE (F8) /BA (28,118) 43,195
Depreciation for the year rEERE 24,193 14,786 £y 592
Significant non-cash expenses  AEFEERH:
(other than depreciation) (&R 47 374 - -
Segment assets P8R 921,814 870,602 16,699 18,891 (108,565)  (109,595) 829,948 779,898
Unallocated assets ROMEE 21,853 18,336
Total assets EEEE 851,801 798,234
Segment liabilities IH8E 420,662 374,309 110,190 112,612 (108,565)  (109,595) 422,287 377,326
Unallocated liabilities KOEER 182,604 153,900

Total liabilities BEGH 604,891 531,226

Capital expenditure incurred ~ AEEREEH
during the year EARR 36,014 23,987 93 1
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11. Property, plant and equipment

M. YE-BERERE

(@) The Group (a) A£H
Furniture,
Land and fixturesand  Plant and Motor Investment
buildings equipment  machinery vehicles  Sub-total  properties Total
IR HREE
BEY k& RERME RE Mt RENE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr AT BETr AT BETx AT B¥Trx
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(&E5) (& 25) (&E5)
Cost or valuation: KA
1 March 2004 ®2004E3A1A 76,469 112,605 19,527 3,718 212,319 530 212,849
Exchange adjustments ~ EXH% - 110 9 6 125 - 125
Additions ®E - 19,662 3,337 999 23,998 - 23,998
Transfer from properties #E&EERE
held for sale 19,906 - - - 19,906 850 20,756
Disposals HE - (6,235) (1,322) (935) (8,492) - (8,492)
Surplus on revaluation  Ef4E% - - - - - 40 40
28 February 2005 12005524 28H 96,375 126,142 21,551 3,788 247,856 1,420 249,276
Exchange adjustments ~ EXA% - 517 28 6 551 - 551
Additions BE - 33,785 1,887 435 36,107 - 36,107
Transfer from B ERE A
investment properties 1,420 - - - 1,420 (1,420) -
Disposals HE - (4,926) (496) (1,318) (6,740) - (6,740)
28 February 2006 12006%2A28H 97,795 155,518 22,970 2,911 279,194 - 279,194
- at cost —BHA
Accumulated REAH:
depreciation:
1 March 2004 7®200453R1H 18,377 98,017 16,358 3,527 136,279 - 136,279
Exchange adjustments ~ EXAZ - 61 2 4 67 - 67
Charge for the year KEERE 1,391 12,142 1,409 436 15,378 - 15,378
On disposals HER = (5,946) (1,251) (935) (8,132) - (8,132)
28 February 2005 72005527 28H 19,768 104,274 16,518 3,032 143,592 - 143,592
Exchange adjustments ~ EXAZ - 353 11 3 367 - 367
Charge for the year KEERE 1,910 20,121 1,827 367 24,225 - 24,225
On disposals HER = (4,875) (496) (1,310) (6,681) - (6,681)
28 February 2006 1200625 28H 21,678 119,873 17,860 2,092 161,503 - 161,503
Net book value: REFE:
28 February 2006 72006525 28H 76,117 35,645 5110 819 117,691 - 117,691
28 February 2005 #2052 288 76,607 21,868 5,033 75 104,264 1420 105,684
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11.Property, plant and equipment M. YE-BERSEE @

(Continued)
(b) The Company (b) A&AF
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
HH-£E
&S
HK$'000
BT T
Cost: B
1 March 2004 and 28 February 2005 7200453818 R H2005562H28H 207
Additions 7BE 240
Disposals HeE (3)
At 28 February 2006 7200652 H28H 444
Accumulated depreciation: EAR:
1 March 2004 and 28 February 2005 7200453818 R H2005562H28H 207
Charge for the year REEIFE 5
On disposals HEr (3)
28 February 2006 7200652 H28H 209
Net book value: FRIER{E:
28 February 2006 7200652 H28H 235
28 February 2005 7200552 H28H =
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11. Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is

M. YE-BERRE®

(0 YIEREREFEND

T —

as follows:—
The Group
REE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(restated)
(&= %)
In Hong Kong TER
- Long leases - RHEIEE 7,292 7,462
— Medium-term leases — S 64,877 66,530
72,169 73,992
Other parts of the PRC EHEHME
- Long leases —REHEE 1,909 1,951
— Medium-term leases —HEE 2,039 2,084
3,948 4,035
76,117 78,027

At the balance sheet date, the property

ownership certificates in respect of the

property interests held in other parts of the
PRC of HK$1,909,000 as stated above have not
been issued by the relevant PRC government

authority.
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11.

12.

Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

(d) The net book value of machinery and motor
vehicle held under finance leases of the Group
and the Company was HK$499,000 (2005:
HK$715,000).

1. WE-BERSEE @

(d) AEBERAQTLRERSIEENKEE
RSENWEREFEABE499,0007T
(20054 : & #£715,0007T) ©

Interests in subsidiaries 12. B A AR
The Company
¥ YN
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Unlisted shares/capital FETRDER

contributions, at cost - ONE 927 708,072 708,072
Due from subsidiaries PEUR I B A Rl BRFX 426,274 300,236
1,134,346 1,008,308
Less: Impairment loss B OREREE (928,076) (764,466)
206,270 243,842

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

TRABIHAEENEE EEREERE
FENWBARFE R ATAEIN Pt
RO HEER-
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12. Interests in subsidiaries (continued) 12. B A TR @

Proportion of

Place of ownership interest
establishment/ Particulars PRI E
incorporation of issued Group's held
and and paid effective by the held by Principal
Name of company operation up capital interest Company subsidiary activity
B/ ZMEY  EBRTRERE KEEH HAAH H M

AEER R RAEFE BERER 2] AREHE TEXHK

Beijing Tse Sui PRC  Rmb1,750,000 56.46% — 56.46% Jewellery
Luen Jewellery HE and manufacturing
Company US$1,800,000 and trading
Limited#/*("BTSL") 1,750,000 A K% KERERES

TRHRHHREARAE %1,800,000% 7T
(THEZRA T 1) *

Excellent Ford Hong Kong HK$10,000 56.46% — 56.46% Jewellery
Development 5% 78#10,0007 trading
Limited ("“EF") B85

EHBRARAA
([EsiER])

Foyer Investment Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100% Property
Limited Ei# 7#10,0007T holding and

ERREBRLA investment

BFENERRE

Guangzhou Xi Yun PRC  Rmb2,000,000 56.46% - 56.46% Jewellery
Jewellery Company FE 2,000,000 A K% retailing
Limited #/** GLEEE

ENEZEREBRAFT**

Guangzhou Xiang Yun PRC  Rmb3,000,000 56.46% - 56.46% Jewellery
Jewellery Company FE 3,000,000 A K% trading and
Limited retailing
("GZ Xiang Yun") #/*** GKEESREE

ENEZHREBRAR
(TRMFE]) ***

Ho Loong Jewellery Hong Kong/ HK$2 100% - 100% Jewellery
Casting Company PRC B2 retailing
Limited B/ HE KEZE

MEREREARAR
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12. Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

establishment/

incorporation

and
Name of company operation
B/ R
REER R
Impromptus Asia Hong Kong
Pacific Limited B
Infinite Assets Corp. British Virgin
("IAC") Islands (“BVI")
RERLES
Queen Busy Limited Hong Kong
B
Shanghai Fu Yun PRC
Jewellery Company FE
Limited #/**
LEREGRERRAT
LEESERBHABRAT PRC
([EBRERE]) ¥+ HE
Tse Sui Luen Investment BVI
(China) Limited KBRZHES
("TSL China")
HEBRE (PE) BRAF
(TEEmEhE)

Particulars
of issued
and paid

up capital

ERTRMR
BRAFE

HK$10,000
#%#10,0007T

HK$275,254
FB#275,2547T

HK$2
BT

Rmb1,000,000
1,000,000 A B#

US$140,000
140,000%= 7T

US$6,863
6,863% T

12. B A BERE @

Proportion of

ownership interest

FrERERL =

Group's held
effective by the held by
interest Company subsidiary
AEEMN AR F
ERED =20) ]
100% - 100%
56.46% - 56.46%
100% - 100%
56.46% - 56.46%
56.46% - 100%
56.46% - 56.46%

Principal

activity

FEXRR

Goldsmith
and jewellery
trading
RERKEES

Investment
holding
REER

Property
holding
SXLIES

Jewellery
retailing

KEZE

Provision of
consultancy

services
RALEER RS

Investment
holding
REER
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Place of
establishment/

incorporation

and
Name of company operation
3L/ EER AR ST
ARERE RBE
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Hong Kong
Company Limited Ei#
("TSLI")
HEBAREERAA
(T BRE )
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Hong Kong/
(Malaysia) Limited Malaysia
HEBIRE (FRAD) B/ ERAE
BRAR
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Samoa
Trading & Distribution EED
Limited (“TSL Trading")
HIRREHER D #
BRAR ([HHBEE])
TSL Investment BVI
(B.V.L.) Limited RERLEE
TSL Jewellery (H.K.) Hong Kong

Company Limited E
HEBIAE (F8) BRAR

TSL Properties Hong Kong
Management Limited Ei#
HERNEEEERLF

# Unofficial translation
FIEEE

12. Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars
of issued
and paid

up capital

ERTRAR
BRARFE

HK$34,000
##34,0007T

HK$3,000,000
78#3,000,0007T

Us$1

1%%

HK$1,000
E#1,0007T

HK$490
4907

HK$1,000
#1#1,0007T

12. MR RHEE @)
Proportion of
ownership interest

FERREL R

Group's held
effective by the held by
interest Company subsidiary
EEEH HARF HH S
BERER BA REARE
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
56.46% - 56.46%
100% 100% -
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

2 Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign joint venture

RIEFEEREM B I EBEETE

**  Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability company

RIEFEEEAMBEREELF

*** Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign enterprise

1RGP B L A R N B
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13. Other financial asset 13. HuBigEE

The Group
rEE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Investment security, BHIRE BRI E
at cost less provision
— Membership and seat in the —SREEZEEEREN
Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society 500 500
14. Inventories 14. #&
The Group
rEE

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Raw materials At 80,776 76,283
Work in progress TR 54,422 56,337
Finished goods BB 365,525 333,340
Finished goods - consigned outward HEm-EIFE - 28,597
500,723 494,557
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15. Trade and other receivables

Included in trade and other receivables are trade

debtors (net of provision for bad and doubtful

debts) with the following ageing analysis:

15. B AR I E b R UK
T PR B 21t P MK P O FE B
(BINBRBERE) WERDNOT

The Group
rEH

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

0 to 30 days 0&£30X 41,983 30,348

31 to 60 days 31XE60X 3,117 1,675

61 to 90 days 61KXE90K 2 3,966

Over 90 days HBIEI0K 20,386 10,437

Total trade debtors AR AAEE 65,488 46,426
Other receivables, Hib R Re

deposits and prepayments R 44,192 50,768

109,680 97,194

Details of trade and other receivables denominated

LA R & ¥ DIME 2 PR AR e EL At R AR 1

in different currencies are as follows:— mr:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Hong Kong dollars it 52,235 35,694
Chinese Renminbi AR¥ 52,576 57,467
United States dollars Ep 4,169 3,626
Others Hitb 700 407
109,680 97,194
The directors consider that trade and other EERR BYRAREMEVREE AV E
receivables approximate their fair value. EE=

Apart from retail customers, the Group allows an
average credit period from 30 to 75 days to other
customers.
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16. Cash at bank and in hand

17.

Details of cash at bank and in hand denominated

in different currencies are as follows:—

16. |RITERRRE
AR ERIIE 2 BT FRRRSHENT:

The Group
AEE

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Hong Kong dollars e 34,824 43,940
Chinese Renminbi ARHE 62,937 32,289
Malaysian Ringgits BRAETT 2,125 2,363
United States dollars Ep 1,069 2,911
Others Hit 294 322
101,249 81,825

Trade and other payables

Included in trade and other payables are trade

17. B RRR AR
DRI R AL (TR AR B 3R

creditors with the following ageing analysis: BREC DATIAT :
The Group
AEE

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
0 to 30 days 0Z30X 34,603 28,147
31 to 60 days 31XRE60X 31,713 32,582
61 to 90 days 61RXRE90KX 19,209 28,757
Over 90 days HBiB90X 97,461 124,270
Total trade creditors B BRFR B R 182,986 213,756
Other payables and accruals HitEN R REGTER 172,033 154,146
355,019 367,902
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17. Trade and other payables (continued)
Details of trade and other payables denominated
in different currencies are as follows:—

17. BHERAREMENSR @
AR A B 2 P B S A SRS

W

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Hong Kong dollars e 141,699 123,199
Chinese Renminbi ARHE 101,901 95,450
United States dollars ESp 107,774 145,570
Others Hit 3,645 3,683
355,019 367,902

The directors consider that trade and other payables

approximate their fair values.

18. Bank loans and overdrafts — secured
At 28 February 2006, the secured bank loans were

repayable as follows:

EERR BEARIREMCEMREEARE

HEe

18. RITERMREX —FEA

200652 A28 H BT RITERNERY

LU

The Group
rEE

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Within 1 year or on demand 1 SR AR 4,000 18,656
After 1 year but within 2 years 158259 R 12,800 1,907
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F&B5ER 40,200 159
53,000 2,066
57,000 20,722

Details of the securities for the bank loans and
overdrafts are set out in note 28 to the financial

statements.
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19. Other loans - secured
At 28 February 2006, the other loans were repayable

19. EtbER-FER

7200628280 i ERMVERIT : —

as follows:—
The Group
TEE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within 1 year or on demand 15 R B AR 14,500 -
After 1 year but within 2 years 15#&E25F R 21,800 22,000
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F#B5FR 36,067 50,367
57,867 72,367
72,367 72,367
(a) Other loans represent the secured loans from (a) HfhEFRIEEWPartner Logistics

(b)

Partner Logistics Limited. At 28 February 2006,
the other loans are secured, interest bearing
at Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate plus 2%.

Details of the securities for other loans are set
out in note 28 to the financial statements.

Limited 9 E E R EF1M2006F2 528
B HtERSHER REBRITRE
FEIN2E T B

(b) HMERZEREBERNT KRR
FfizE 28°
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20 Obligations under finance leases

The Group leases office equipment and a motor
vehicle under finance leases expiring in two years
(note 11(d)). The Group also leases computer
equipment of HK$1,349,000 (2005: HK$943,000)
under finance leases expiring in three years. The
computer equipment was included in prepayments.
At the end of the lease term, the Group has the
option to purchase the assets at a price deemed to
be a bargain purchase option. None of the leases

included contingent rentals.

At 28 February 2006, the Group and the Company
had obligations under finance leases repayable as

20. BEEERIE
REEZBRMERIBZMEREHARQ
ERERIE FiEE11(d) AKETEB=F
REIH 2R EHETE AR EEY 1,349,000 T
(20054 : 7##£943,0007T) 2 BIRE-SBHER
B AR C-AEES AR NEEEE
UEEERBAGANEE -SREREHT
BElEHS.

200652 A28 H  AEERA D AIHEEH
ERERESRAT

follows:

(a) The Group (a) &&KEH
2006 2005
Present Interest Present Interest

value of the expense Total value of the expense Total

minimum relating minimum minimum relating minimum

lease to future lease lease to future lease

payments periods  payments payments periods payments

EEEE B &R EEEE BEEE H&HE RIEHE

ARERE WHIEXHE ARELRE  ARERE  WAEXE AREER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETL BETT BETL BRI BETT BETT

Within 1 year 15/ 660 60 720 508 57 565
After 1 year but 1%

within 2 years PES 479 24 503 534 31 565
After 2 years but 25%08

within 5 years S8R 135 6 141 342 6 348

614 30 644 876 37 913

1,274 90 1,364 1,384 94 1,478
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20. Obligations under finance leases

20. BAEHERE @

(Continued)
(b) The Company (b) AT
2006 2005
Present Interest Present Interest
value of the expense Total value of the expense Total
minimum relating minimum minimum relating minimum
lease to future Lease lease to future lease
payments periods  payments payments periods payments
EEEE H&HE EEHEE REHE =Fe:i] RIEHE
ARERE HIEXL (RELY IRERE HAIEXE  ARELH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETL BETT BETT BETT BETT
Within 1 year 15R 446 47 493 305 34 339
After 1 year but 15#%(E
within 2 years 26 331 21 352 320 19 339
After 2 years but 254418
within 5 years SR 135 6 141 195 3 198
466 27 493 515 22 537
912 74 986 820 56 876

Notes to the Financial

Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
Page 142/143 §



21. Employee benefit obligations

(a)

Long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
the Group is obliged to make lump sum
payments on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of
service with the Group. The amount payable is
dependent on the employees’ final salary and
years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group's retirement plan that
are attributable to contributions made by the
Group. The Group does not set aside any assets

to fund any remaining obligations.

(i) The amount recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet is as follows:

Present value of IEEAESHNEENER

unfunded obligations

21. BERAEHK
(a) REBRBE
RIBEE(RERGD RN EBER
THEATELEAEREERBEL R
FRRLES T FEANBREFIANTAME
BLEE TN RBRE S EAHRIMR
BELHRETNBRFSNRBEH
FTE WHIBRBMTE A R ER IR ET &I R
TEfEE PR AR EERNE D A KR
ERBREMEEATESNER SR

() EHREEEREXRBEANBEMN

T:
The Group
AEE
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BET T
8,759 10,190
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21. Employee benefit obligations (continued) 21. EERANER @

(a) Long service payments (Continued) (a) REERBE @)
(ii) Movements in the net liability recognised (i) EHEEEEEREINEETHE
in the consolidated balance sheet are as BEIINT
follows:
The Group
AEH
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$’000
BET T BEET T
At beginning of the year FHEREE 10,190 9,570
Expense recognised in the R RERNZH
income statement (note 4(b))  (Ktz+4(b)) (1,431) 844
Employer contributions/ BEMRBRERK
benefit payments - (224)
At end of the year FAREREE 8,759 10,190
(iii) Expense recognised in the consolidated (i) EHFERERERNIHNOT:

income statement is as follows:

The Group
TEE

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Current service cost REERBRA 13 99

Interest cost FEEA 427 522
Net actuarial (gains)/losses EBRRBE (Kw) BB FE

recognised (1,871) 223

(1,431) 844
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21. Employee benefit obligations (Continued)
(a) Long service payments (Continued)

(ivy The expense is recognised in the

following line items in the consolidated

income statement:

21. EEEAEKE @
(a) EHEBS @)
(v) SEZLETIGARSZEER

13 .
A -

The Group
AEH

2006 2005
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cost of sales SHER A (289) 926
Selling expenses HEEH (854) 553
Administrative expenses THER (288) 195
(1,431) 844

(v) The principal actuarial assumptions used

as at 28 February 2006 (expressed as

weighted average) are as follows:

Discount rate

Future salary increases
Year 2006
Year 2007 and thereafter

I ES

RRFFE IR
2006
2007 R E &

(v) 200652 H28RFEAMNETERE
R (AMBEFIIERR) T

The Group
AEE
2006 2005
4.25% 4.25%
4% 3%
3% 3%
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21. Employee benefit obligations (Continued)
(b) Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme"”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.

Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The Group also operates defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes for all qualifying
employees in the PRC and Malaysia with
contributions to the schemes at 7% and 12%
of the gross salaries respectively. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of

independent trustees.

21. EEEBAZERK @
(b) REMFCRIKEE

REBIRBE B CRHIE AL EIR
By BIRE  BIRIBEE B (RIEFRGD IERA
WESR VAT LB LTS ([EES
FHEl) cREEHER —EREMAE
et 8 BB N ZEAEE RIERE
S5 E BEENESHARBIESHEEA
BEHI5% E 5T 8E R B8 B H1EE
AE EFRE8%20,0007T @5 EIfEHE
R ENEE R B E R ST

FAEETRPERERAZTESER
HIBE RN — SR EHRFRAFT Bl &
ZH X NHOERD GBI R SRA
DB THESATMNT %R 12% ° 5HEIK
BEEBYRAEBNEESA YHEY
ZEAEHE-
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22. Current tax (recoverable)/payable
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet

22. (JUrE) HEfH A HR R 1B
() EESEXFRDBHES:

represents:
The Group
rEHE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits REEBBREBRE
Tax for the year 815 9,683
Provisional Profits Tax paid EEHREH (1,353) (2,226)
(538) 7,457
Overseas taxation NI 9,553 10,418
Balance of profits tax provision UEFENSHBERR
relating to prior years 81,841 40,119
90,856 57,994
Representing: &
Tax recoverable EEE R (1,020) (652)
Tax payable FEAHE 91,876 58,646
90,856 57,994
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22. Current tax (recoverable)/payable 22. (AJWE) FE(FTAERFLIE @)

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) ERRELEHEBEEENEME:
recognised:
The Group rEH
The components of deferred tax (assets)/ EREEEEBREANELHE (B
liabilities recognised in the consolidated E) /ABERFANEEMNT:

balance sheet and movements during the year
are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances
in excess Revaluation  Employee  Provision
of related of benefit for Tax
depreciation  properties obligations inventories losses Total
BARENE

MAERBE  NXER BEENEE FEERE  HEER e
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BRTR  BEMTR  BRTR  ERTR  E¥Tx

Deferred tax arising ELHERE:

From:
1 March 2004 R2004F3H1A
As previously WAI28
reported 252 221 - - (3,316) (2,843)
Prior year adjustments ~ LEEHE 110 (221) - - = (111)
As restated FCE| 362 - - - (3,316) (2,954)

(Charged)/credited to rRalER

consolidated (3%) /A
income statement |
- restated (3,328) - (1,783) (10,052) 448 (14,715)

28 February 2005 and R200562A28R %

1 March 2005 - 318 -KBE5

restated (2,966) - (1,783) (10,052) (2,868) (17,669)
(Charged)/credited to rRANER

consolidated (3I%) /3 A

income statement (1,278) - 250 43 (2,084) (3,069)
Exchange difference EREE (11) - = (39) - (50)
28 February 2006 2006525284 (4,255) - (1,533) (10,048) (4,952) (20,788)
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22. Current tax (recoverable)/payable 22. (A[RE) FESARETIE @

(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EERELHEEENEE: (&)
recognised: (Continued)
The Group (Continued) AREEF (i)
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
(restated)
(&=5)
Net deferred tax asset recognised fEHREEEEBRERN
on the consolidated EEBIEE EFE
balance sheet (20,834) (17,684)
Net deferred tax liability EHREEESBERERN
recognised on the EEREEEEHE
consolidated balance sheet 46 15
(20,788) (17,669)
(c) Deferred tax assets and liabilities not () FAERWELHESENEE
recognised
The components of unrecognised deferred tax REE R ZARBRANELRIE (BE) /
(assets)/liabilities at the balance sheet date are BEMBSMT:
as follows:-
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
(restated)
(&%)
Depreciation allowances in
excess of related depreciation EEERITENITERBIRE 4,156 3,997
Tax losses BIEEE (107,617) (81,959)
Net deferred tax assets
not recognised AERNELEHEEEFE (103,461) (77,962)
The net deferred tax assets have not been A SR AL TR R R SR B M A
recognised in the financial statements in view of AR A BHIS 3R PO RS L b HOIE IR IS
the uncertainty of the recoverability. B G
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23. Share capital

23. |RA&

2006 2005
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
BHEE -} RHER X}
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$’000
T AR BET T TR BET T
Authorised: EEMRA:
Ordinary shares of BREESEY
HK$0.25 each 0.25 T B 1,500,000 375,000 1,500,000 375,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTR
BERE:
Ordinary shares EER
At beginning of the year F#I8k%g 207,063 51,766 391,889 97,972
Capital reorganisation RAEA
(note (a)) (BtaE(a)) - - (352,700) (88,175)
Shares issued under loan &ERERET
conversion (note (b)) B2 (BfaE(b)) - - 133,364 33,341
Shares issued under NEBERT
open offer (note (c)) B2 (BfaE(c)) - - 34,510 8,628
At end of the year FRERER 207,063 51,766 207,063 51,766
Notes: st

(a) By a special resolution passed at the special general
meeting held on 18 November 2004, a capital
reorganisation was approved and details of which

are as follows:—

(i) Every 100 issued ordinary shares of HK$0.25
each in the capital of the Company was
consolidated into one issued consolidated
ordinary share of HK$25 (“Consolidated

Share”);

(ii) The nominal value of each issued Consolidated
Share was reduced from HK$25 to HK$2.5 by
cancelling paid-up capital to the extent of
HK$22.5 on each issued Consolidated Share
(“Capital Reduction”);

(a)

RIER2004F11 A 18 B RITHERIBRRAE
PIEBRASEIRER ERBARESHE F18

W

() ARAEAHEBI100REREERE
0.25THEBRITEBERSHBIRER
HEBB25 THERTEHEBER

(Tr&ptR®% 1) ;

(i) BBEUHRBEN22 5TNERE T
BHRONBERA BEREBTE
BRI REE BB 25 TR E B

257 (MREL ;
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23. Share capital (continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(@]

(iii) The amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company as at 29
February 2004, being HK$86,037,000, was
cancelled (“Share Premium Cancellation”);

(iv) The amount standing to the credit of the
contributed surplus account and the capital
redemption reserve account of the Company
as at 29 February 2004, being HK$532,336,000
and HK$173,969,000 respectively, was released
from such accounts;

(v) Each issued Consolidated Share of HK$2.5 was
subdivided into ten adjusted shares of HK$0.25
each (“Adjusted Share”);

(vi) The credit arising from the Capital Reduction
and the Share Premium Cancellation in the
amount of HK$174,212,000, together with the
amount of HK$173,969,000 released from the
capital redemption reserve account of the
Company (as referred to (iv) above), totalling
together HK$348,181,000, was transferred to
the contributed surplus account of the
Company;

(vii) The directors authorised the set-off of the
aggregate amount of HK$348,181,000
transferred to the contributed surplus account
of the Company (as referred to (vi) above),
together with the amount of HK$532,336,000
already standing to the credit of the
contributed surplus account of the Company,
against all of the accumulated losses of the
Company as at 29 February 2004, being
HK$865,747,000; and

(viii) The authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$270,000,000 to
HK$375,000,000 by the creation of 420,000,000
new Adjusted Shares.

Partner Logistics Limited converted secured other
loans of HK$137,365,000 into 133,364,000 Adjusted
Shares at a conversion price of HK$1.03 per Adjusted
Share. The share capital and share premium account
have been increased by HK$33,341,000 and
HK$104,024,000 respectively.

Pursuant to an open offer in 2005 34,510,000
Adjusted Shares were issued at a subscription price
of HK$1.03 per Adjusted Share. The share capital and
share premium account were increased by
HK$8,628,000 and HK$26,918,000 respectively.
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24. [R7N @)

BifeE: (4%)

(b)

()

(iii) BUHM20045F2 8298 RERAQ TR
1 ERAEH86,037,000 THRE
(MBUER D =ED) ;

(iv) FERRIA2004F2 H29A REREHE
REABEREEMERE 255
7B 532,336,0007T K B 173,969,000
TCHIFRIE

(v) BSREEB¥2STHEBRITENHRG
W2 R0 B REEB#0.25 TR
B ([BERGB])

(i) BERBHERMGEEELENBY
174,212,000 T8 R {E A A RN E AR
BB A B AR PR AV B %5 173,969,000 7T 5K
B/ (mEw(iv) rEl) MAaRBY
348,181,0007cE AR A R W EHEER
BRIEA;

(vii) EEERREUBAKRQATNERRGEREE
RAEEEEH348,181,000 T WFIE
(gn B (vi)Frd) RAQTREBRE
PHREBEEERZEENE®
532,336,000 T IBIK 57 A T 742004
F2H290 B EBH865,747,0007THY
e REE &k

(viii) 77 F]3EBEN420,000,0008% 7 #9:R
B G IEAERZ B EE270,000,000
T Z 8 #6375,000,0007T °

Partner Logistics LimitediZ & R AR 1778
#51.03 T VBRI (E £ 8 %5137,365,000THY
HiERE M B 5 133,364,000 AR
13 o AR B4R (E 2 B i & #E 33,341,000
7 % 78 %5104,024,0007T °

RIB2005F—RAMER KA R T
34,510,000/ FE 5 RREASRHERH
FBHE1.03 70 RA R IR IR B 2 Bl I A
8,628,000t 2 78 %26,918,0007T °



24. Reserves

24, R

The Company PN
(Accumulated
Share-based Capital losses)/
Share  Contributed compensation  redemption retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
(RitER) /
R E BARSn ROBERE BEXEDRE REEF B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BT BT BRI
1 March 2004 M20045£3R18 86,037 532,336 - 173,969 (865,747) (73,405)
Capital reorganisation ~ RAZEA
(note 23) (Hz£23) (86,037) (517,566) - (173,969) 865,747 88,175
Shares issued under ERERBITRG
loan conversion (7E))
(note 23) 104,024 - - - - 104,024
Shares issued under AHBERTRG
open offer (note 23) (K1&£23) 26,918 - - - - 26,918
Share issue expenses RAEBITEX (14,308) - - - - (14,308)
Profit for the year REERF - - - - 59,281 59,281
28 February 2005 72005627 28R 116,634 14,770 - - 59,281 190,685
1 March 2005 R20056£3R18 116,634 14,770 - - 59,281 190,685
Issue of share options ~ E{TEMRE - - 2,332 - - 2,332
Loss for the year KEEFE - - - - (37,831) (37,831)
28 February 2006 #2006%2A28H 116,634 14,770 2,332 - 21,450 155,186
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24. Reserves (Continued)
The Company (Continued)

0}

(if)

The contributed surplus of the Company arose
from the difference between the consolidated
net assets of the Group's subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to a group reorganisation at the date
on which the reorganisation became effective,
and the nominal amount of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued under the
reorganisation; less the set-off of the
accumulated losses of the Company amounting
to HK$865,747,000 as at 29 February 2004
pursuant to a capital reorganisation.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of
the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:—

(a) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and

share premium accounts.

The aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company
at 28 February 2006 was HK$155,186,000 (2005:
HK$190,685,000).
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24. [R7N @)
AAT (@)

)

(ii)

RABZEBHBRDIEEEEBMEL
AIREAER A BAEEE AWK BEER
ZREEEFEEESHBTZANA
ZRREEZZE BRE—EELRE
#H ARDTR2004F2H290 BEBEE
865,747,000 T iy R 5T E5 181K S5 A

RIBAFRE1981F A RE (RIEFT) - A
DA ZBHEBRT DK TRR-

BETIERT AR EREHBER
REFUREERIHANSRE 2 A H DIk

(a) HEBNKRER FTDFTEIES
e ANE LR =R e

(b) AFAAFREENALREERMER
HEE BBITRARROEER
ZHBHo

2006525288 - A DIk FA R B RE
2 & 58 %155,186,0007T (20055 :
7%#190,685,0007T) °



25. Commitments

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments outstanding at 28
February 2006 not provided for in the financial

statements were as follows:

25. 7&iE

(a)

4200642 B 28 B » A (E S T AR B RS 3R
RARBREBNEARRENT:

The Group The Company
rEE PN
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B¥ETT BT T BT T
Contracted for EHEY 3,017 1,267 - -
At 28 February 2006, the total future minimum (b) 74200652 A28 H iRIEF O] MRBRAVAS &
lease payments under non-cancellable HEE R RENNREAETRELH
operating leases are payable as follows: WM
The Group The Company
AEE QT
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T BT T
Within 1 year 1ER 57,444 46,164 3,174 2,520
After 1 year but 15#B5FR
within 5 years 56,829 45,147 - 1,050
After 5 years SF# - 701 - -
114,273 92,012 3,174 3,570

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of one to three years, with an
option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
adjusted to reflect market rentals upon

renegotiation of the terms of the lease.

REBUEEHERAR D YR FLM
E-ROSHB—FE=F WAFEE
BESMARES BRAARKETE
HEE-HENREERERERELN%K
HEFHE URRmSHE-
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26. Share options 26.

As disclosed under the heading of Share Option
Scheme, 8,825,000 options were granted in 2005
to the directors, employees and service providers
of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the
2003 Share Option Scheme. 20% options granted
are exercisable from 22 August 2005. The next 40%
options granted are exercisable from 18 months
from the date of grant and the remaining 40%
options granted are exercisable from 24 months

from the date of grant.

The fair value of options granted, was determined
by using the Binomial valuation model. The
significant inputs into the model were share price
of $1.71 at the grant date, exercise price of $1.76,
expected volatility of the Company’s share price:
60% p.a., expected life of options of 4 years,
expected nil dividend, annual risk-free interest rate
of 3.38% p.a., rate of leaving service of 15% p.a.
and assume option holders will exercise their
options when the share price is at least 180% of
the exercise price. The fair value of options granted

are as follows:

Exercise period

1T

22 August 2005 — 25 July 2009 2005 8H22H—2009%7 5258
22 January 2007 - 25 July 2009 20074 18228—2009%F7 258
25 July 2007 — 25 July 2009 200757 H258—2009%7 8258

Given the above assumptions and the inherent
limitations of the Binomial valuation model,
shareholders and other investors are hereby warned
of the subjectivity and uncertainty of the

aforementioned values of the options.
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FANEE AR ST B —EI P R A A B AR #52003
FRER A8, f£2005F £ 1% 118,825,000
BRETFAARREMBARZES EER
RIS R - Eh20% EFHNBERET S
200558 H22 BT S 7M0% 2R HIVIE
BREATRZH AL 18EAEITHE T
40% B 1% H BB IR BE R AT AR A #5224
8 A #1716

ERHNBREND AERIZENX | HEE
BEAHE LR RENETEBEEE
R AHHNREL71 T TEE176T- A A F
REZFAHRIESF60% - BRENTERFH
AF FRHTRE EEMFRZ3.38% - FEH
B R15%  WRRBRERE ABRREZ
TEERD180%KITEBRE-CRHAVEE
RIEMN D AET:

Fair value No. of vested

per option options granted

SHBREN BEHYSE
ARME SR ERE
$0.567T 1,765,000
$0.697T 3,530,000
$0.737T 3,530,000

ERN EREBRR =B | SREEERN 28]
ARG RABEMREESRRREMRESE:
LB REEENREEE B #UE



27. Contingent liabilities

(a)

(b)

At 28 February 2006, the Company has issued
guarantees to banks and financial creditors in
respect of general banking and other credit
facilities extended to certain subsidiaries of the
Company amounting to HK$150,096,000 (2005:
HK$95,346,000).

As set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 1 February 2006 and 20 April
2006, the Company was informed that two
directors, a consultant and an employee
(collectively “the Officers”) were charged by
the Independent Commission Against
Corruption (“ICAC") relating to the alleged
offences under the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, the Crime Ordinance and the Theft
Ordinance (“the ICAC Charges”). It is alleged
that the Officers were involved in a scheme to
offer illegal commissions to employees of a
number of travel agencies and to help them

to evade tax.

Under the Company’s Bye-Laws, the Company
may be required to indemnify its directors from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of
them may incur in execution of their duty,
provided that such indemnity shall not be
extended to any matter in respect of, among
other things, fraud and dishonesty.

The directors have consulted with the
Company’s legal advisers as to what legal
implication the ICAC Charges may have, if any,
for the Group as a whole. In view of the
discussions with the legal advisers, the directors
are of the view that they are not in a position
to conclude whether and/or to what extent the
Company may be required to indemnify the
directors involved in relation to the ICAC

Charges.

27. REEE

(a)

(b)

1200652 A28 H » A R R R 1T R BAFE
BRAGRTHBOMBAT —RIRTRE
tHERRMEREE mRITRIBEEAME
4+ 58#150,096,0007T (20054 : &
#£95,346,0007T) HIFE{Re

BAMAATAE2006F2H1AR
20065F4 208 2 A FE - AN A B)1S%
MEES —CEAR—BREE (578
[BEEXEAE] HEBAE ([RE])
4 5 & A5 0 BE LE B ERAR G IS R1T
1551 % BB RIRGIH ZIERT ([REWR
2]) BEREZEAESRESR—RES
B T B TIRMEISEAE RIGEH %
BizstEle

REARAT 2 ABHAE N AR ATREAT
HEZRBITHBMEL 2 IAFA K
FTHEA BERAXARERRES
EPEMA L EE EEREREEL T
BiE (AP ERE) KFRTHAETH.

EEZCHRAAD A EEBEEERER
ETRE (IR) BAEBEEEK 2 AR
B -ENELE R T 25w B
ERR BERERRTETEASRRE
WEZESFEHFMEK RAEDAMEL
FECREEHER.
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27. Contingent liabilities (continued)

(9

As explained in note 5(a)(ii), the outcome of
the challenges by the IRD on the tax treatments
adopted by the Group relating to certain
offshore income and agent commission
payments and promoter fees arising in prior
years is undetermined as at 28 February 2006.
The Group has established a provision of
approximately HK$91,000,000 in respect of
such disputes. In the event that the Group is
not successful in defending the tax treatments
adopted, the Group may be subject to
significant additional tax liabilities and possibly
penalties which, under the provisions of the
current tax legislation, may be up to three
times any tax under-reported as assessed by the
IRD. Furthermore, the ICAC's allegations as
mentioned in (b) above and the ongoing
investigation may or may not have impact on
the IRD’s challenges on the tax treatments
adopted by the Group relating to agents
commission payments and promoter fees
arising in prior years. The directors consider
that it is impractical to estimate the potential
amount of additional tax liabilities arising if
the IRD’s challenge in respect of the agent
commission payments and promoter fees is

successful.

28. Pledge of assets

(a)

At 28 February 2006, debentures were
executed by the Group in favour of its bankers
and financial creditors charging, by way of
fixed and floating charges, all of the
undertakings, properties and assets of the
Company and of its 17 subsidiaries as security
for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities,
actual or contingent, from time to time owing
by the Group to the bankers and financial
creditors. Rental revenue of the Group is also

charged in favour of the Group’s bankers.
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27. S EEE @

(9]

SANRTEES (a) (i) Fritl BiAg /S ¥ AR K @Rk
UAFENETRERARNERES
HEEKHEESARAREEESE
ZE5EN200645F2 A28 A iH K15 H iR
AEBERZBHELNEE
91,000,0007C Z & o fitl AN SR B R AERAFT
BN AS IR IB 5 AR Th g A B E
AIEEIBBEE BETREERR SR
RIERITBUE BRI E L ERB /T
EARIRBIE 2 = 2o tb b £ 30 (b)IEFT
MERE IR RIHERS A e HBE B
RAEBERAUIFEREAS X HHE
EBEEBRAMEMNBBEREL A28
RENYE-EFERA MBEERASE
EEEATFEEREAS I HEERE
BEARAHISEE R L2 EREE
PG EE 2 BEEIMBREL R

BT

28. EEHKA

(a)

200652 A28 H  AKEBR] M ERERE
UAABRHENTEMB QR ZREF
B MEREEEBEERFBERGT
RITR M EEAMERIER LUER (B
HERE) REB TR RRTR U ERE
ANFIABRRHEEEREBHER
me A EE 2 BT WEMER TASEZ
R1Te



28. Pledge of assets (continued)
(b) At 28 February 2006, the Group pledged the

(9

capital contribution to a subsidiary of the
Group amounting to US$235,000 and all the
benefits accruing to the pledged equity interest
of 11.625% of the subsidiary to the Group’s
bankers and financial creditors as security for,
inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual
or contingent, from time to time owing by the

Group to the bankers and financial creditors.

At 28 February 2006, the Group pledged all
rights, titles and interests in 56.46% of the
entire share capital of IAC and TSL China and
all benefits accruing to the pledged equity
interest to the Group’s bankers and financial
creditors as security for, inter alia, all
obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent,
from time to time owing by the Group to the

bankers and financial creditors.

29.Connected and related party
transactions
(a) During the year ended 28 February 2006, four

subsidiaries of the Company, BTSL, EF, GZ Xiang
Yun and TSL Trading sold and consigned
finished goods to Hua Long amounting to
HK$9,480,000 (2005: HK$128,417,000) and Rui
Feng amounting to HK$684,000 (2005:
HK$16,852,000) and Mr. Qi Jian Hong (“Mr.
Qi”) amounting to HK$2,888,000. The
transactions were carried out by way of cost-
plus pricing arrangements in the normal course

of business of the subsidiaries.

28. EEIKH @

(b)

(9]

1200652 A28 B » A EIEE A — kT
BATI#N235,0005 T HEER LN Z
Ft B 2 B9 11.625% & 3K I IR ANk
R —PIRIFE R FAEBAIRITR
M EREA LMER (HHERE) ~&E
TEEXRITRIBEERANTEERS
SEREREBIETR-

7200652 H 280  REEIEERIACKH
i ek P B A B N BE AV 56.46 % HY — £
R rEfE gD &k SR MR AER TR
ST — 4RI AR T AR E B AR 1T R B
BERA UMES (HPEE) AEER
RRSRITRIBEREANFEBRRE
EEEREBNIERR-

29. BERBBALRS

(a)

REZE200652 28R ILEER AL T
EMEA R R R R E
MEENHHBEAE D EERTER
B R T EEBE 78 %59,480,0007T (20054 :
7B5128,417,0007T) ; 3% 58 %5684,000
7t (20054 : 785 16,852,0007T) FELE
ST e ([F5E4E ) B%52,888,0007T 55
ERXZEEMBAREEEEEBRESP
LARKZS AR FE B SR T
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29.Connected and related party
transactions (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Hua Long and Rui Feng were licensees of Tse
Sui Luen Jewellery (China) Limited and
distributed the consigned finished goods to
shop outlets operating under the trade names
of “Tse Sui Luen” in the Mainland China. There
was no monetary consideration paid by the
licensees in respect of using the trademark

licenses.

During the year ended 28 February 2006, TSL
Trading received commission, depending on
the nature of the products, amounting to
HK$372,000 (2005: HK$19,515,000) and
HK$82,000 (2005: HK$2,878,000) from Hua
Long and Rui Feng for their respective

confirmed purchases from BTSL.

During the year ended 28 February 2006, Tse
Sui Luen Jewellery Consultancy Service Limited
(”"TSLJCS”) paid Hua Long consultation fee
amounting to HK$605,000 (2005: HK$558,000)
for Hua Long'’s advice of public relation matters
to TSLJCS.

In March and April 2004, £/8%F 238 (formerly,
Shanghai Tse Sui Luen Consultancy Service
Limited) received consultancy fees of
HK$226,000 and HK$30,000 from Hua Long
and Rui Feng, respectively. No consultancy fees
have been charged to Hua Long and Rui Feng
since 1 May 2004.

At 28 February 2006, the amount due to Hua
Long was HK$2,461,000 (2005: due from Hua
Long of HK$15,183,000) and the amount due
from Mr. Qi was HK$2,888,000 (2005: Nil). At
28 February 2005, the amount due from Rui
Feng was HK$17,000.
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29.Connected and related party
transactions (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

Hua Long and Rui Feng are companies
controlled by Mr. Qi who is a substantial
shareholder and a director of the two
subsidiaries of the Company, IAC and TSL
China, and is also a director of a subsidiary of
TSL China, BTSL. The licensing, sales,
consignment, commission and consultancy
service arrangements therefore constituted

connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of
the Company have reviewed these connected
transactions and confirmed that such

transactions were:

—  entered into the ordinary and usual course

of business of the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial
terms or, if there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and
reasonable so far as the shareholders of

the Company are concerned;

— in accordance with the Licensing and
Consignment Terms (as defined in the
circular dated November 2003), master
supply agreement, comprehensive services
agreement, and other terms governing
the continuing connected transactions
that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole; and

—  within the respective limits as set out in
the circular dated 6 November 2003.

29. BERBEHBALRS @

(a)

()

FEREM IR B ME D
RSN F) I Y A B — | ACHT 3 B
FENEERRNES AR H BT
—REME A R B ES Bt
RAUEENER S5 FE AENERN
RN ZHBR L TR ESNEER
He

AR RNBILHNTEB BB
B3R5 BRABLRSRETHIRRT
1T

-  EAKEEN—RNAFEESBARS
1T

- BREFEFEGR R (HERZE
X5 UMELLR) B AR DRI R
= BRAFRNE RO IRET

- RITHEEEARFERR (&
20034 11 A 8% H AV ER FT SR AE) »
AHE R ZERBHE UARE
R EISERER S N AT SE
HRFGEST W EER LSRR
AR RAVIERS

—  $%2003F11 6 A3 HAVERTE
HIAERAPRRB R ETT

Notes to the Financial

Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
Page 160/161 &



29.Connected and related party
transactions (Continued)

(b)

(9

Partner Logistics Limited acquired all the rights,
title and interests in the indebtedness due to
certain of the bank lenders by the Group
amounting to HK$195,731,000 and
HK$14,000,000 on 11 February 2004 and 2 April
2004, respectively. Partner Logistics Limited is
a company controlled by Mr. Tse Tat Fung,
Tommy, the substantial shareholder and a

director of the Company.

On 16 December 2004, Partner Logistics Limited
converted HK$137,365,000 of the loans owned
by the Group into ordinary shares of HK$0.25
each in the capital of the Company.

The outstanding loans due to Partner Logistics
Limited amounted to HK$72,367,000 (2005:
HK$72,367,000) are secured and interest
bearing at Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate
plus 2%. During the year ended 28 February
2006, interest expenses paid to Partner Logistics
Limited amounted to HK$3,880,000 (2005:
HK$4,189,000).

During the year ended 28 February 2006, TSLJ,
a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw
materials and finished goods from Rosy Blue
Hong Kong Limited (“Rosy Blue HK")
amounting to HK$144,782,000 (2005:
HK$122,000,000) and sold raw materials to
Rosy Blue HK amounting to HK$2,020,000
(2005: Nil). As at 28 February 2006, the amount
due to Rosy Blue HK was HK$78,987,000
(2005: HK$67,000,000).
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(b) Partner Logistics Limited/4200442 B
11B%2004F4 828 2 B AR EERE
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Partner Logistics Limited 42004412
H16 AR EE /Y E¥137,365,0007T
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(20054 : ##£4,189,0007T) °

(0 ZADTF—EHBLTAFEMKEREE
2006F2H28H L FE ftRosy Blue
Hong Kong Limited ([Rosy Blue HK)
BB E58%144,782,0007T (20054 :
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29.Connected and related party
transactions (Continued)

(9

(Continued)

During the year ended 28 February 2006, TSLJ
sold raw materials to Rosy Blue Japan Limited
("Rosy Blue Japan”) amounting to HK$ 184,000
(2005: Nil), sold raw materials to Rosy Blue Inc.
amounting to HK$100,000 (2005: Nil) and sold
raw materials to Rosy Blue Fine Inc. amounting
to HK$375,000 (2005: Nil). As at 28 February
2006, the amount due from Rosy Blue Fine Inc.
was HK$134,000.

TSLJ borrowed HK$15,600,000 (US$2,000,000)
from Rosy Blue HK on 2 September 2005. The
loan is unsecured, bears interest at London
Interbank Offering Rate plus 3% per annum
and was fully repaid on 14 October 2005.
Interest expenses paid to Rosy Blue HK
amounted to HK$170,000 for the year ended
28 February 2006 (2005: Nil).

During the year ended 28 February 2006, EF
sold raw materials to BTSL through Rosy Blue
(Shanghai) Diamond Company Limited (“Rosy
Blue SH"), an authorised diamond trading
company in the PRC, amounting to
HK$48,433,000 (2005: HK$71,000,000). As at 28
February 2006, the amount due from Rosy Blue
SH was HK$665,000 (2005: HK$5,000,000).

Rosy Blue HK, Rosy Blue Japan, Rosy Blue Fine
Inc., Rosy Blue Inc. and Rosy Blue SH are
subsidiaries of Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L.,
a preference shareholder of Partner Logistics
Limited. In the opinion of the Directors of the
Company, the transactions were carried out on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary

course of business.

29. BERBEHBALRS @

(9]

(#&)

BZE2006F2 A28 H I FE - HHBTRE
BRosy Blue Japan Limited ([Rosy
Blue Japan]) HHE& R E#E % 184,000t
(20054 1 &) K E#H1#L; ERosy Blue
Inc. HEAZE%100,0005T (20055 :
) PEM L K ERosy Blue Fine Inc.
HEBBE 375,000t (20054 : £&)
B 1o 74200652 H 28 H » FE U Rosy
Blue Fine Inc.FYFXIE %78 %5134,0007T

Wi ERE MR 200559 A2 HEIRosy
Blue HK{EHE#%15,600,0007T
(2,000,000%7T) - ZEE R R EIKR-
RMBRTEAEREMIEFE AR
2005108 14 H BHEEZE B E20065F
2A28H It FE [Rosy Blue HKXZ ¥ 2
FEZHBEEE170,0007T (20054
/) o

BEHBENEE200652828H L FE
FER-—BPEZATEAES N RERR
(b®) BABRAE ([EBREE]) @
TRHHBEERME REEY
48,433,000t (20054 : 7&#571,000,000
JT) °A20065F2 H28 A - FEREE KR L3
BRI 5815 665,0007T (20054 : B
5,000,0007T) °

Rosy Blue HK ~ Rosy Blue Japan * Rosy
Blue Fine Inc. * Rosy Blue Inc. F1EEI Bk
_EB#HPartner Logistics Limited B985t
B B2 BRRosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L.
ZHMBAR AAREERA RBEH
EEKIBRETIRIEEREEGRRET
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29.Connected and related party 29. BERBBMALIRE @

transactions (Continued)

(d) TSLJ has entered into a Consultancy Agreement
on 11 April 2005 with Mr. Tse Sui Luen (“Mr.
Tse") for the provision of consultancy service.
Mr Tse is the father of Mr Tse Tat Fung, Tommy,
the substantial shareholder and a director of
the Company. During the year ended 28
February 2006, consultancy fees of
HK$2,080,000 and share-based payments of
HK$40,000 were paid to Mr. Tse.

(e) The Group paid key management personnel (e)

compensation as follows:—

(d) HEBERER200554 811 B E 558
S ([HSE4E D) RRIRARERS R A% =T SLRE
B L ERN AR ETERRRES
AHEWE AL 2 R B -EE20065F2H28H
1L B a4 X 178%2,080,000
T 2 AR B F % LA BR £71E 14 785 40,000

Joo

REERETEEEASANHENT:

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Short-term employee benefits EHESREA 12,980 13,844
Post-employment benefits RIKEFI 37 48
Equity compensation benefits R ERER 1,165 -
14,182 13,892
30. Financial risk management and 30. I EBEERAREMRE

estimation of fair values

(a) Financial risk management
The Group is exposed to a variety of risks
including foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk
arising in the normal course of the Group’s

business activities.

The Group does not have any written risk
management policies and guidelines. The
directors monitor the financial risk
management of the Group and take such
measures as considered necessary from time to

time to minimise such financial risks.
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30. Financial risk management and
estimation of fair values (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk primarily through sales and purchases
that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars, Malaysian
Ringgits and Chinese Renminbi. The Group
does not hold or issue any derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes
or to hedge against fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates. The Group mitigates this
risk by conducting the sales and purchases
transactions in the same currency,
whenever possible.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that
customers may not be able to settle
obligations within the normal terms of
transactions. The Group performs ongoing
credit evaluation of the debtors’ financial
condition and maintains an account for
allowance for doubtful trade and other
accounts receivable based upon the
expected collectibles of all trade and other
accounts receivable.

At the balance sheet date, there were no
major concentrations of credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
therefore represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset as stated
in the balance sheet.

Cash is held with financial institutions of
good standing.
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30. Financial risk management and
estimation of fair values (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial risk management (Continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise
will encounter difficulty in raising funds
to meet commitments associated with
financial instruments. Liquidity risk may
result from an inability to sell a financial
asset quickly at close to its fair value.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash. The Group
monitors and maintains a level of bank
balances deemed adequate to finance the
Group’s operations.

(iv) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates.

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

Estimation of fair values

The notional amounts of financial assets and
liabilities with a maturity of less than one year
(including trade and other receivables, cash at
bank, trade and other payables) are assumed
to approximate their fair values. The fair value
of finance lease liabilities is estimated as the
present value of future cash flows, discounted
at current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.

The fair value of non-trade balances due from/
to group and related companies has not been
determined as the timing of the expected cash
flows of these balances cannot be reasonably
determined because of the relationship.
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31. Recent accounting and financial 1. A EMN ST R B |RESE
reporting pronouncements Al
The HKICPA has issued the following amendments, ERSTMASERMTIIREEAEERE
new standards and interpretations which may be/ 2005512831 A& Z B HRERmEERE 218
are relevant to the preparation of the Group'’s A HTERIR R
financial statements after 31 December 2005:-

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RULT B 2 &M% 2

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
BEBETHERE 1R (1B7])

HKAS 19 (Amendment)
EBGTHEAE 1958 (8]

HKAS 21 (Amendment)
EBETEAFE2155 (83])

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
EBETHERIZE395 (1B:])

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
BBMEHREERE 15 (1BE])

HKFRS 6
B EREERF65R

HKFRS 7
BBMBIREENETR
HKFRS-Int 4

BB EER — R EEIR

HKFRS-Int 5
EBIEIREER — R EESR

Presentation of Financial Statements:
Capital Disclosures
BB RZE®M: ERIFE

Employee Benefits — Actuarial Gains and
Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures
EEEN -—FEER KETERKE

The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rate
EXgeowE

Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement
TR BARE

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
BRERME B YR E2ER

Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources
BEER <8RR G

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
ST A FFESE

Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease
EERHRRBEHE

Rights to Interests arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

KRILEFE BERRRBEBERSELER ZEF

SR HEER

1 January 2007
20075181RH

1 January 2006
20065F1A1H

1 January 2006
2006F1A1H

1 January 2006
20065F1A1H

1 January 2006
20065F1H1H

1 January 2006
2006F1A1H

1 January 2007
20075181RH

1 January 2006
2006F1A1H

1 January 2006
2006F1A1H
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31.

32.

Recent accounting and financial
reporting pronouncements (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6
&k (BRI RERRESS)
—RRREE6I

Liabilities arising from Participating in
a Specific Market — Waste Electrical
and Electronic Equipment

3. RIAEMANER RYBHREE

Bl )
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT B2 &Rk
EREEES:

1 December 2005
200512811

BHERETSEL2EE-BEETRENIRE

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7
B (EARMBEREREERES)
—RBETR

Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economics

1 March 2006
200638 1H

RABRBETERNE2N NBEEEBRZES

2B BHE | 2 EFE

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8
B (EARMBERERERZES)
—RBES

Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
&8 (BBRUBREREEZES)
—REHER

EfBRALTETIA

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies
(Amendment) Ordinance 2005 came into effect on
1 December 2005 and will be first applicable to the
Group’s financial statements for the year beginning
1 March 2006.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and interpretations is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of these amendments,
new standards and interpretations is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of
operations and financial position.

Ultimate controlling party

At 28 February 2006, the Directors consider the
ultimate holding company to be Blink Technology
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, and the ultimate controlling party to be Mr.
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.
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BBEIRE R F 2R EE

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

32.

1 May 2006
20065F5H 1H

1 June 2006
20066 H 1H

Lt5h 2005 F FE D T (1BE]) fRAIR2005F
1281 BAR WEIRERNAEER20065F3
A1ERE 2 FE 2P BHmke

REBREFEERZSE HEAREE
HERRAHBER 2B - BrlfmAER
MZEER] EARBRBT AR EHASE
B REXBERPBRRERERTE-

RAERA

R20065F2H28H EER R RARERARA
MEBE LB B M LAIBlink Technology
Limited » MHRAKIZRA L HBHHEE L



